
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee West 
Wednesday, 20th November, 2013 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee West, which 
will be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 20th November, 2013 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Jackie Leither - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564756 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Ms Y  Knight (Chairman), A Mitchell MBE (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, R Butler, 
Mrs R Gadsby, Ms H Kane, Mrs J Lea, Mrs M Sartin, Ms G Shiell, Mrs P Smith, 
Ms S Stavrou, A Watts, Mrs E Webster and J Wyatt 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 7.00 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public 
gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 November 2013 
 

2 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties). 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 4. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 21) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 23 October 

2013 as a correct record (attached). 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 9. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/15/13 - LITTLE 
CUTLANDS, WILBEA AND ROYD, ST LEONARDS ROAD, NAZEING  (Pages 22 - 
24) 

 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 November 2013 
 

3 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 
 

 8. THREAT OF SPECIAL MEASURES AND REFUNDING OF PLANNING FEES  
(Pages 25 - 28) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 9. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 29 - 40) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider the planning 

applications set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers  
(i)   Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)   Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 10. PROBITY IN PLANNING  (Pages 41 - 98) 
 

  Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 
 

 11. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 12. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 20 November 2013 
 

4 

 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



 
 
Area Planning Subcommittee West  2013-14 
 
 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Cllr 
Webster 

Cllr Smith 

Cllr Bassett 

Cllr Watts 

Cllr Mitchell 

Cllr Sartin Cllr Shiell 

Cllr Knight 

Cllr Wyatt 

Cllr Butler Cllr 
Gadsby 

Cllr 
Stavrou 

Cllr Lea 

Cllr Kane 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: 23 October 2013  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30 - 9.10 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Ms Y  Knight (Chairman), A Mitchell MBE (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, 
R Butler, Mrs R Gadsby, Ms H Kane, Mrs J Lea, Mrs M Sartin, Ms G Shiell, 
Mrs P Smith, Mrs E Webster and J Wyatt 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: Ms S Stavrou and A Watts 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant) and J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant) 
 

  
 

38. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

39. MINUTES  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 25 September 
2013 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 
40. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs E 

Webster and J Wyatt declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item 
of the agenda by virtue of being the local ward members. The Councillors had 
determined that they would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/1784/13 Knollys Nursery, Pick Hill, Waltham Abbey EN9 3LF 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs Y Knight 

declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue 
of living locally and being the local ward member. The Councillor had 
determined that she would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/0303/13 Former Total Service Station, Nazeing Road, Nazeing EN9 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Area Planning Subcommittee West  23 October 2013 

2 

 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs Y Knight 

declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue 
of knowing the applicant. The Councillor had determined that she would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 

 
• EPF/1717/13 Brook House, Middle Street, Nazeing EN9 2LQ 

 
41. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 
 

42. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That, Planning applications numbered 1 – 6 be determined as set out in the 

annex to these minutes. 
 

43. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last 
meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the 
Civic Offices. 
 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
Revised report from the Supplementary agenda 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1784/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Knollys Nursery 

Pick Hill 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 3LF 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey Paternoster 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Outline application (with appearance, landscaping layout and 
scale reserved) for redevelopment of site to provide up to 105 
residential units, 80% affordable, associated parking access 
road, amenity areas and community facility with shop. Access 
to be determined. 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553090 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Metropolitan Green Belt 
which by definition is harmful to the objectives of including land in the Green Belt 
and is therefore at odds with Government advice contained in the NPPF and policy 
GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. This includes the development of 
housing and community facility within the boundaries of the Green Belt for which no 
very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the very significant harm to the 
openness of the area and any other harm have been demonstrated. 
 

2 The site is considered to be unsustainable in respect of proximity to shops, services 
and facilities in Waltham Abbey such that the town would continue to sprawl 
eastwards with residential properties further detached from these services and 
future occupants and users of the community facility are likely to resort to the use of 
private motor cars. Therefore the proposal is contrary to policies CP1, CP3, ST1, 
ST2 and ST3 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations and national guidance in the 
NPPF.  
 

3 The setting for the proposal is in an identified area of high overall landscape 
sensitivity to change; while the proposal makes space for internal landscaping a 
development of the scale proposed could not be integrated successfully into the 
landscape context and as such would have a detrimental impact on its landscape 
character. As a result of the nature of the location, including its openness to views, 
the removal of existing vegetation and the ineffectiveness of screen planting, the 
development would also have an adverse visual impact on the appearance of this 
area of sensitive landscape and on the Waltham Abbey settlement edge. As a result 
the proposal is incompatible with Local Plan and Alterations policies LL1 and LL2. 

Minute Item 42

3Page 11



 
Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1782/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Nazeing Heating Ltd  

91 North Street  
Nazeing  
Waltham Abbey  
EN9 2NJ 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/36/02 
T1 - Oak - Fell 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553071 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The application provides neither justification nor need for the proposed felling.  The 
loss of the tree's existing and potential amenity is therefore contrary to policy LL9 of 
the Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 

4 Page 12



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1904/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 25 Windsor Wood  

Monkswood Avenue 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 1LY 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey North East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/10/90 - G4 - Sycamore - Fell 
TPO/EPF/10/90 - G5 - Sycamore - Fell 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553772 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Although it is recognised that both trees cause inconvenience and shading these 
issues are not sufficient to justify the loss of their visual and other amenity.  The loss 
of the trees' existing and potential visual amenity is therefore contrary to policy LL9 
of the Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 

5Page 13



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0303/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Total Service Station  

Nazeing Road  
Nazeing  
Essex 
EN9 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

APPLICANT: Nazeing Parish Council 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing service station and construction of 6 
x 2-bed houses, with associated amenity space, off-street 
parking, landscaping and new vehicular access 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545814 
 
The officer introduced this item and explained that after the agenda was produced a revised layout 
plan had been submitted which widened the access to the site, reduced the number of parking 
spaces within the site to 6 but increased their size to meet adopted standards and removed the bin 
store from the prominent position at the front of the site.  In addition a Water Vole survey had been 
submitted, which indicated that there was no evidence of water voles in the brook behind the site. 
The officer explained that this amended layout had been considered by the Highways Officer from 
Essex County Council and it was accepted that the first reason for refusal, relating to the width of 
the access had been overcome and that the bay size criticism in the second reason for refusal had 
been addressed, but that the highway objection relating to inadequate parking provision within the 
site and inadequate turning space remains. 
The case officer explained that the revised layout had resulted in the garden sizes of the 
properties being reduced even further and that the fact that no water voles had been found was 
good to know, but that the Environment Agency objection based on the lack of adequate buffer 
zone to enable ecological enhancements was still valid. 
The officer recommendation therefore remains to refuse for reasons 2, 3 and 4 in the report 
although reference to parking bay sizes, cycle storage and refuse storage could be taken out of 
these. 
Members considered the revised proposals and felt that due to the proximity of the site to shops, 
doctors surgery, school, parking facilities, a children’s play area and open space, the site was a 
sustainable location in which it was appropriate to accept lower parking provision and amenity 
space.  They considered that the proposal which was well designed, would provide small units  
which could meet the needs of young couples or the elderly and  was in accordance with the 
NPPF. 

6 Page 14



The application was therefore Granted subject to the following conditions 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the 

expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place 
until documentary and photographic details of the types and colours 
of the external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the commencement of 
the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 
 

3 The access, parking and turning areas shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved plans prior to the first occupation of 
any of the dwellings hereby approved. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
General Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any 
other order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that order) no 
development generally permitted by virtue of Part 1, classes A, B, 
and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

5 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment 
shall include calculations of increased run-off and associated 
volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best 
practice tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to 
the substantial completion of the development and shall be 
adequately maintained in accordance with the management and 
maintenance plan. 
 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land 
Contamination investigation has been carried out. A protocol for the 
investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 1 
investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report 
shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, 
property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and 
service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient 
monuments and the investigation must be conducted in accordance 
with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for 
the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  

7Page 15



[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local 
Planning Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the 
Phase 2 site investigation condition that follows] 
 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk 
assessment carried out under the above condition identify the 
presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no development shall 
take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. A 
protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of 
the Phase 2 investigation. The completed Phase 2 investigation 
report, together with any necessary outline remediation options, 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. 
The report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed 
humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters 
and surface waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and 
ancient monuments and the investigation must be conducted in 
accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local 
Planning Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the 
remediation scheme condition that follows] 
 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as 
necessary under the above condition, no development shall take 
place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a 
condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
remediation scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The remediation scheme must include all works 
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation 
criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. 
The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the intended use 
of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local 
Planning Authority before the submission of details pursuant to the 
verification report condition that follows] 
 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme and prior to the first use or occupation of the 
development, a verification report that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance 
programme and copies of any waste transfer notes relating to 
exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local 

8 Page 16



Planning Authority for approval in writing. The approved monitoring 
and maintenance programme shall be implemented.  
 
 

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at 
any time when carrying out the approved development that was not 
previously identified in the approved Phase 2 report, it must be 
reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in 
the approved remediation scheme, a verification report must be 
prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 
 

11 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other 
preparatory work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape 
works (including tree planting) and implementation programme 
(linked to the development schedule) have been submitted to an 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall 
include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features 
to be retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of 
enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, 
including signs and lighting and functional services above and 
below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include 
plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written 
specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant 
sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within 
a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment 
of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes 
seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the 
same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at 
the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 
 

12 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface 
water disposal have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 
 
 

13 Prior to commencement of development details of a scheme to 
enhance the biodiversity of the site shall be submitted to and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme 
shall be carried out in accordance with an agreed timetable. 
 

14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including 
vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of 
noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 

9Page 17



08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on 
Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

15 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in 
accordance with the approved drawings nos: 11230-P005-D 
 
 

 

10 Page 18



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1620/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Powdermill Mews 

Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 1JG 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey South West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of two storey front extension and extension to front of 
garage. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=552350 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building. 
 
 

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

11Page 19



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1717/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Brook House 

Middle Street 
Nazeing 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 2LQ 
 

PARISH: Nazeing 
 

WARD: Lower Nazeing 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey garage/workshop/storage to replace 
one that was previously destroyed in a fire. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=552831 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 

three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 No development shall take place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

3 The proposed development shall only be used for purposes incidental to the 
enjoyment of the existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit 
separately from the dwelling known as Brook House, Middle Street, Nazeing. 
 
 

4 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

12 Page 20



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
West  
 
Date of meeting: 20 November 2013 
 
Subject: CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
TPO/EPF/15/13 – Little Cutlands, Wilbea and Royd,                 
St Leonards Road, Nazeing 
 
 
Officer contact for further information:   Melinda Barham (Ext 4120) 
Democratic Services:   Jackie Leither (Ext 4756)   
 
Recommendation(s): 

 
That tree preservation order TPO/EPF/15/13 is confirmed with modification.  

 
Background 
 
1. A pre application submission was received for the demolition of the existing 
houses and the construction of a 22x1 bedroom, 23x2 bedroom extra care unit, and 
32 two storey detached and semi detached houses.  
 
2. Aerial photographs showed that the site had some large and possibly veteran 
trees within it. It was not clear from the information submitted with the application that 
the trees on the site had been fully surveyed and no tree information to support the 
proposal was provided. The trees were therefore considered under a threat of being 
removed to maximise the development potential of the site. 
 
3. At the time of making the order it had not been possible to access all properties 
and therefore as an interim measure this ‘area’ order was placed over the whole site. 
It currently protects all trees of all species that were present at the time the order was 
made. 
 
Objections / Representations   
 
4. No objections have been received. 

  
5. Four letters of support have been received, one of which has been signed by 17 
residents of Tatsfield Avenue.  

 
The Director of Planning and Economic Development comments as follows: 
 
6. Government guidance on the making of new TPO’s is that an ‘area’ classification 
should only be used in emergencies and then only as a temporary measure until the 
trees in the area can be assessed properly and reclassified. 
 
7. A full assessment of the trees has now been undertaken and identified 8x oak ; 3x 
field maple ; 1x hornbeam and 2 areas of woodland as being suitable for having 
continued protection by this order. 
 

Page 23



8. The proposal, therefore, is to modify the order to ensure that only those trees 
suitable for be protected remain protected.  
 
9. Additionally, in modifying the order it highlights to any potential future developer of 
the land which trees the LPA considers are important and should allow for them to be 
incorporated in any site layout.  
 
Conclusion 
 
10. In amending this order from an ‘area’ order to a more detailed order, it will 
highlight to future developers which trees are suitable for long term retention. It is 
therefore recommended that the order is confirmed with modification. 
 
 

Page 24



Report to Area Plans Subcommittee West 
 
Date of meeting: 20 November 2013 
 
Subject:  Threat of Special Measures and Refunding Of Planning 
Fees 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson - 
Assistant Director (Development)  x 4110 
 
Committee Secretary:  S Hill Ext 4249 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
(1) That the Subcommittee notes the new threat from the Governments 
“Planning Guarantee” of returning planning fees where planning applications 
are not decided within 26 weeks from being made valid,  
 
(2) That  Subcommittee notes the threat of “special measures” in respect of 
not achieving a timely decision on Major category planning applications and 
the extent to which such decisions are overturned on appeal, 
 
(3)      That the three Area Plans sub-committees note (1) and (2) above in 
determining planning applications in a timely manner; and 
 
(4) That the Assistant Director (Development) encourages applicants, when 
necessary, to sign up to pre and post application agreements to extend the 
time period for determination so as to avert the return of planning fees or the 
Authority falling into “special measures”. 
 
 
Report 
1. Reasons for Proposed Decision: 

 
1.1. (Director of Planning and Economic Development) From 1 October 2013, the 

Government introduced a controversial policy with a requirement for local authorities to 
refund any planning fees if a council fails to decide an application within 26 weeks from 
an application being made valid. It does not apply to planning applications already 
validated before 1 October. This forms part of the government’s "planning guarantee" 
initiative to speed up the delivery of development.  

 
1.2. The policy goes further, in that those local planning authorities with 20 per cent or lower 

major development appeal decisions dismissed or fewer than 30 per cent of major 
applications decided within 13 weeks over a rolling 2-year period are to be placed in 
special measures, which would allow an applicant to submit any future major planning 
applications and its fee direct to the Planning Inspectorate.  

 
1.3. The Assistant Director (Development) will need to monitor the turnaround time of 

planning applications to safeguard against any refund of planning fees or loss of 
income through designation of special measures. Decision making at planning 
committees with a deadline for any signing of section 106 legal agreements will need to 
be strictly adhered to and therefore it is recommended that this report also be brought 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



to the attention of the planning committees, where there is potential for delays on 
decision making. Where appropriate and agreed by applicants, agreements into 
extension of time for planning applications will be used, thereby allowing a longer 
acceptable time for planning application determination.       

 
2. Other Options for Action: 

 
2.1  This is new planning legislation and there are no other options for action, other than to 
not take advantage of the extension of time where applicable, which leaves the Council 
vulnerable to being put into special measures and paying back the planning fee.  

 
3. Report: 

 
3.1 The Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 enables the Secretary of State to designate 
local authorities that are considered to be performing “poorly” in their determination of 
major planning applications. Designation will mean that applications for major 
development (e.g. development of 10 or more dwellinghouses, 1,000 or more square 
metres of floor space or 1 or more hectares) can be made directly to the Planning 
Inspectorate, on behalf of the Secretary of State, instead of to the designated local 
authority. 

 

3.2 The performance of local authorities is to be assessed, on a rolling 2-year basis, against 
both the speed with which applications for major development are dealt and the extent 
to which such decisions are overturned on appeal. Authorities will be assessed against 
each aspect independently and so could be designated as “special measures” on the 
basis of either aspect or both. If 30% or fewer of a planning authority's decisions are 
made within the statutory determination period (or any agreed extension) or 20% or 
more of an authority's decisions are overturned on appeal then that authority will be 
designated because of its poor performance. These thresholds will be kept under 
review, with the intention of raising them over time to help drive improvements in 
performance. The planning fee in these cases would also go direct to the Planning 
Inspectorate. 

 
3.3 The Council’s performance in terms of determining major applications in 13 weeks over 
a 2 year period between July 2011 and June 2013 is 55% and therefore well outside the 
special measures threshold. It is anticipated at the time this report was being finalized 
and rolling this on for the 2 year period from October 2011 to September 2013, the 
Council’s performance is likely to be about 58%. At this current rate therefore, there 
would not be a threat of the Council going into special measures, but it needs to be 
monitored and delays avoided.   

 
3.4 Even if a local planning authority is put into special measures, the applicants can 
continue to apply to a designated local planning authority, instead of the Planning 
Inspectorate, if they wish to. It is important to note that applications made directly to the 
Planning Inspectorate forfeit any subsequent right of appeal. Designation can be 
revoked if the Secretary of State is satisfied that the designated authority has provided 
adequate evidence of sufficient improvement against its identified weaknesses. It is 
proposed that designation (and de-designation) should be undertaken once a year.  

 
3.5 The “Planning Guarantee” means that all planning application types (not just Majors) 

Page 26



should spend no more than 26 weeks with either the local planning authority or, in the 
case of appeals, the Planning Inspectorate. While the risk of designation through poor 
performance should help to deliver the Guarantee, the Government now proposes also 
to require, as an additional measure, a refund of the planning application fee where any 
planning application remains undecided after 26 weeks. Applications awaiting a final 
decision because of the need to sign a Section 106 legal agreements are therefore 
going to be particularly vulnerable to meet this target, and potentially delays caused 
because of the late signature of the applicant. 

 
3.6 It does mean that planning and legal officers will be faced with tougher timescales which 
could have direct financial consequences on Development Control income, particularly if 
developers are unwilling to sign up to an extension of time for determination on planning 
applications or hang on to, say the 27th week before signing a section 106 agreement, 
for example. The area planning subcommittee’s meet on a 4-weekly cycle but any 
planning application requiring a decision at District Development Control Committee 
takes longer because of the 8-week cycle and in many cases have already been to an 
area committee meeting beforehand. Members of those committees therefore need to 
be made aware that deferring a decision from one committee meeting to another (the 
usual reason being for a Members site visit) should only be done in very exceptional 
cases and indeed, planning officers will look to encourage any formal Members site 
visits to be taken before the committee meeting. Planning application officers will also 
need to be aware of the deadline should any delegated applications approach this 
deadline, although this is very rare.   
 

3.7 Agreements to extend the time for determination can be made for both major 
development applications and other applications that would normally be determined 
within 8 weeks. However, for the overall credibility of the planning system, extensions of 
time should really be the exception and efforts made to meet the statutory timescale 
wherever possible. In most cases this additional time will provide an opportunity for 
matters to be resolved positively so that a proposal can be recommended for consent.  If 
an application is unacceptable in principle or cannot be modified to become acceptable 
it is likely that it will be determined within the statutory period. Clearly, the advantage of 
the extension of time, which requires the agreement of the applicant/developer, is that 
this becomes the new target date and if met, will not count against our performance.  

4. Summary: 
 
4.1 This report therefore serves the purpose of bringing to attention the possible financial 
consequences if there is no extension of time agreement in place if the 26 week target 
date is not met and secondly, if the time taken to decide Major planning applications in 
13 weeks falls below 30% (20% for appeals). The concern though is not just financial, 
but also a democratic one if committee and delegated planning applications decision 
making is taken out of consideration by this authority.  
 

4.2 There is a possibility that the terms of reference for District Development Control 
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees may need to be reviewed so that the time 
taken for reporting planning applications to a meeting, particularly major type 
applications, can be reduced. 

  
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’ 

20 October 2013 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION 
OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/2040/13 
Garage block 
adj 14 Harveyfields 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 32 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



123  
 
 

 
  

 

19.5m

19.2m19.2m

19.2m
19.5m

19.2m

Superstore

Ambulance
Station

F ir e

S t a t i o n

1 5

L e x d e n  T e r r a c e

1
1

1 7

4

11
12

6

S ul tan
( P H )

T he

1 4
1 1

El
Sub Sta

1 5

2 2

13

4 4

3 2

23
26

3 8

45

27

3 1

2 5

24

8

22

16
19

21
18

89

15

20 2317

4 6

4 2

4 7

3 8

4 5
4 0
4 3

4 4

3 9

to
76

72

79
to

1 8
2 6

2 0

58

51

5 3

4 8
t ot o
5 2

4 9

to
71

15

5

12a
13a

11a10a

30

2 6

3 2
3 3 2 9
t o
3 7

2 8

6

10

67

77

73
to

82
83

to 85
to

88

84
to

78

4 1

3 4
t o

1

S ul tan
( P H )

T he

Station

1 5

L e x d e n  T e r r a c e

Ambulance

1

1 7

4

F ir e

S t a t i o n

1 1
1 4

El
Sub Sta

Superstore

4 4

23
26

1 5

2 2

13

15

11

8

12
6

12a
13a

5

2 9
3 2

2 6

30

2 8

27

3 1

2 5

24
20 2317

to 85
16
19

to
88

84

21
18

89

15

22

3 3
t o
3 7

3 4
t o
3 8

2 6

2 0

1 8

58

3 8
3 2

51

45

6

10

11a10a

to
83

to
82

73

78
to
77

79

4 6

4 7

4 1

4 2
4 5

4 0
4 3

4 4

3 9

to
67

76

72
to
71

t o

5 3

4 8

t o
5 2

4 9

H A R V E Y F I E L D S

G R E E N F I E L D  S T R E E T

V I C T O
R I A  R

O
A D

K I N G  G E O R G E  R O A D

H A R V E Y F I E L D S

K
I N

G
 G

E O
R G

E  R
O

A D

S E W
A R

D S T O
N

E  R O
A D

H A R V E Y F I E L D S

G R E E N F I E L D  S T R E E T

V I C T O
R I A  R

O
A D

K I N G  G E O R G E  R O A D

H A R V E Y F I E L D S

S E W
A R

D S T O
N

E  R O
A D

K
I N

G
 G

E O
R G

E  R
O

A D

E l  S u b  S t aE l  S u b  S t a

*
*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 1 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: 1 
Site Name: Garage block adj 14 Harveyfields 

Waltham Abbey, EN9 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 32



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2040/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Garage block 

adj 14 Harveyfields 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9  
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey South West 
 

APPLICANT: Epping Forest District Council 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of garages and provision of 9 affordable flats within a 
three storey building with external parking and amenity areas. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554573 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 612 029 PL01, PL02, PL03B, PL04A, PL05A, PL08, PL09, 
PL10 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening(s) in the flank elevation(s) shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and 
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the 
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 

Page 33



appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation 
scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management 
procedures and any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. 
The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under 
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 

Page 34



before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  
 

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

12 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents (staff) and visitors vehicles. 
 

13 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan. 
 

14 Prior to the first occupation of the development any redundant dropped kerbs or 
vehicular access points  shall be fully reinstated to include full construction of the 
footway and full height kerbing where necessary. 
 

15 Prior to the first occupation of the development the developer shall be responsible 
for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information Pack for 
sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council. 
 

16 Prior to the commencement of development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  the approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

Page 35



17 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary, 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of 
Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)) 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The application site is a rectangular site measuring 35m x 25m which comprises 40 lock up single 
garages and hardstanding. The site is owned by this council and the garages are available to rent. 
The site is bounded to the east by King George Road and to the west by Harveyfields and there 
are residential properties surrounding the site, including a three storey flatted development directly 
opposite the site in Harveyfields..  Vehicular access is from Harveyfields to the west as there are 
bollards on the boundary with King George Road.  
   
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is for the erection of a 3 storey block containing 9 units of flatted accommodation (5 
two bedroom and 4 one bedroom).  The new building is to be sited in the centre of the site with 16 
surface level parking spaces, with access directly from Harveyfields and from King George Road.  
The proposed 3 storey building is of red brick with a pitched tiled roof and includes balconies on 
the west facing elevation. The building is well articulated with central gable features to both front 
and rear. The proposal includes provision of cycle and refuse storage within the building and 
space for soft landscaping including tree planting. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
None Relevant 
  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The Housing Directorate carried out their own extensive consultation prior to the submission of the 
application.  In addition 48 Neighbours were consulted and a site notice was erected - the 
following responses were received: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL- No objection:  The existing garage boundary wall needs to be considered in the 
interests of safety and visual amenity. 
 
51 GREENFIELD STREET.  Object: Where are the existing garage occupants going to park, 
Parking in Harveyfields is already difficult. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 – New development 
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns 
H2A – Previously developed land 
H3A – Housing density 
H4A – Housing mix 
H5A -Provision of affordable housing 

Page 36



H9A - Lifetime Homes 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE3 – Design in urban areas 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL11 – Landscaping schemes 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
This is a council application to develop its own land for the provision of 9 affordable housing units.   
 
Suitability of site: 
 
The application site is located within the urban area of Waltham Abbey and is considered to be a 
sustainable location with relatively good access to the town centre, facilities, employment and 
public transport. The ‘golden thread’ that runs through the NPPF in terms of both plan-making and 
decision-taking is the presumption in favour of sustainable development. The principle of further 
development within this type of location is considered to accord with this presumption and 
therefore this should be afforded significant weight. Furthermore, the redevelopment of this site 
would constitute the reuse of previously developed land. Both the NPPF and Local Plan policy 
H2A encourage the reuse and intensification of use of such sites; however applications still need 
to be assessed on their individual merits. 
 
Amenity considerations: 
 
The proposed development would be a three storey block replacing existing single storey flat 
roofed garage blocks.  The west elevation will face towards the front of flats in Harveyfields of a 
similar height, at a distance of between 27 and 32 metres and the eastern elevation will face the 
side elevation of number 13 King George Road and its rear garden at a distance of about 17 
metres and the front elevation of number 15 King George Road at a distance of about 26 metres.  
It is not considered that this will cause any significant loss of privacy or overlooking.  Whilst there 
will be side facing views of the private amenity area of Number 13, which is at present not 
overlooked the situation is very similar to many corner plots and the distance is in accord with the 
guidance in the Essex design guide. 
 
The block has been sited some 8 metres from the side elevation of the nearest property to the 
south and roughly on the same building line such that there will be no adverse impact with regard 
to light and outlook. The side facing windows proposed are to be obscured glazed so there will be 
no overlooking issue.  The proposed balconies will enable occupants of the flats at the southern 
end of the block views over the front garden of number 14  King George Road, but as this is a 
publicly visible area this is not considered harmful. 
 
Design 
 
The surrounding area comprises a range of architectural styles and designs including 2 storey 
terraced housing, semi detached properties and 1970’s 3 storey flats.  The proposed 3 storey 

Page 37



development will fit well within this mix and will not be over dominant.   The front and rear 
elevations both incorporate gable features and changes in materials to break up the facades and 
the materials proposed are considered appropriate.    
 
The proposal is designed to meet Level 4 of the code for sustainable homes and would comply 
with the Lifetime Homes criteria.  The Ground floor flats are suitable for wheelchair users. 
 
The design has also taken into consideration the need for security and ensures that the parking 
areas and communal spaces are open and visible to limit crime and antisocial behaviour problems. 
Whilst the scheme does result in quite prominent parking which is not ideal, given the restraints of 
the site and its current use as a car park it is not considered that this would be grounds for refusal. 
 
Each of the flats has its own private balcony or small terrace area and there is a limited amount of 
communal space between the building and the parking spaces, it is considered that for this 
provision is sufficient for these 1 and 2 bed flats. 
 
The proposals include indicative landscaping and the landscape officer is content that subject to a 
landscaping condition there is scope for some greening which will soften the impact of the 
proposal in the locality. 
 
In terms of townscape it is considered that the development can only be an improvement over the 
existing garage court which has no value in visual amenity terms. 
 
Highway Safety and Parking Issues 
 
The proposal will result in the loss of 40 existing council garages and the impact of this loss needs 
to be assessed.  There is however no specific planning policy which seeks to retain existing 
parking courts.  Of the 40 garages 18 are currently void and 22 are let.  A report undertaken by the 
Highway engineers Mouchel indicates that within Essex County Council 78% of all garages are not 
used for car parking, as such it can be surmised that potentially only 5 of the garages at the site 
are likely to be used for parking.  At present the council currently has 51 garages vacant and to let 
in surrounding roads, so anyone who loses a space within the site would potentially be able to rent 
an alternative space within a few hundred metres. 
 
In addition 34 additional parking spaces were recently approved under planning reference 
EPF/1543/13 and are unallocated spaces that could be used by people who currently use the 
garage site. Whilst it is acknowledged that there is extensive on street parking in the area it is not 
considered that this development will result in a significant increase in this problem. 
 
With regard to the proposed parking within the site, 15 parking spaces are proposed.  This meets 
the adopted parking standards of 2 spaces per 2 bed unit and 1 space per 1 bed unit with 2 visitor 
spaces.  The spaces will be accessed directly from Harveyfields and King George Road. 
 
The Highway Authority has raised no objection to the proposal either on the grounds of level of 
provision or on highway safety grounds, subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Affordable Housing 
 
The development falls below the threshold which requires the provision of affordable housing, and 
as such there is no requirement for a legal agreement to secure affordable housing.  The 
application is, however, a Council proposal and the development will provide 9 much needed units 
for applicants on the Council’s Housing waiting list, at an affordable rent.   
 

Page 38



Drainage 
 
The site is not within any Environment Agency Floodzone but is within an Epping Forest District 
Council flood risk assessment zone and is of a size where it is necessary to avoid generating 
additional run off and the opportunity should be taken to improve existing surface water runoff.  
The Engineering, Drainage and Water Team have raised no objection to the proposal subject to 
the imposition of a land drainage condition. 
 
Contamination 
 
The site is potentially contaminated land and it is therefore necessary to impose full contaminated 
land conditions to ensure the safe development 
 
Other Issues 
 
The Town Council whilst not raising objection to the proposal have asked that the existing garage 
boundary wall be considered in the interests of safety and visual amenity.  The application 
drawings indicate that the existing garage wall along the southern boundary is to be retained if 
structurally sound.  This is considered appropriate subject to suitable finishing of the wall but a 
condition can be added requiring details to be submitted.          
 
Conclusion 
 
This proposal for the redevelopment of an underutilised and unsightly area of land within the urban 
area of Waltham Abbey to provide 9 flats is considered to be in accordance with the principles of 
sustainability set out in the NPPF making the best use of urban land.  Whilst there will be a 
reduction in parking provision given the number of vacant garages within the locality it is not 
considered that this will result in significant additional on street parking.  The design is appropriate 
to the location and will enhance the visual amenity of the area, and there will be no significant 
harm to the residential amenity of surrounding residents.  The application is considered to be in 
accordance with the adopted policies of the Local Plan and the NPPF and is recommended for 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Mrs Jill Shingler 
Direct Line Telephone Number 01992 564106 
 
Or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

t 

 Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee  
 
Date of meeting:  West – 20 November 2013 
 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson (01992 564110). 
Democratic Services:    Jackie Leither (01992 564756) 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
Report Detail: 
 
Background 
 
1.  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the recommendation of 
the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making committees of the results of all 
successful allowed appeals (i.e. particularly those refused by committee contrary to officer 
recommendation).  The purpose is to inform the committee of the consequences of their 
decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on 
planning grounds, an award of costs may be made against the Council. 
 
2. In recent years the Council performance has been 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05, 22% in 
2005/06, 30% in 2006/07, 29% in 2007/08, 40.3% for 2008/09, 30.9% in 2009/10, 36.6% in 
2010/11, 28.8% in 2011/12 and 27.7% in 2012/13.   
 
3. Since 2011/12, there have been two local indicators, one of which measures all planning 
application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (KPI 55) 
and the other which measures the performance of officer recommendations and delegated 
decisions (KPI 54).    
 
Performance 
 
4. Over the six-month period between 1 April 2013 and 30 September 2013, the Council 
received 37 decisions on appeals (35 of which were planning related appeals, the other 2 were 
enforcement related).  
 
5. KPI 54 and 55 measure planning application decisions and in total, out of this 35, 14 
were allowed (40%). Broken down further, KPI 54 performance was 4 out of 20 allowed (20%) 
and KPI 55 performance was 10 out of 15 (66.67%). 

  
Planning Appeals 
 
6. Out of the 15 planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse 
contrary to the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month period, the Council 
was not successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the following 10 cases: 
 
Area Committee South 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



 
 

 
EPF/1785/12 Demolition of existing nursing home and the  152 - 154 Daneley Court 
  erection of 14 apartments and associated car Nursing Home 
  parking spaces, amenity space, bin and cycle stores,  Queens Road 
  foul and surface water drainage and landscaping. Buckhurst Hill 
  
EPF/0071/12 Single storey rear extension with flat roof 6 Chigwell Rise 
    Chigwell 
 
EPF/0160/12 Part change of use on the ground floor from C3 6 Chigwell Rise 
  Residential to D1 in order to extend the current Chigwell 
  dental surgery space 
 
EPF/0161/12 Removal of condition 8 of planning permission 6 Chigwell Rise 
  EPF/0594/10 to allow D1 use without employee Chigwell 
  living on site. 
 
EPF/0931/12 Demolition of the existing house and garage.  182 Roding Road 
  Construction of a block of five one-bedroom flats;  Loughton 
  new vehicle access cross-overs and external landscaping.   
 
 
Area Committee East 
 
EPF/1714/12 Single storey summer house and deck (revised  Orchard Villa 
 application to incorporate pitched roof and alterations  Norton Heath 
 to elevations). High Ongar 
 
EPF/2192/12 Erection of fencing (1.8m in height) and change  11A Lancaster Road 
  of use of land, currently in use for parking of  North Weald Bassett 
  residents vehicles, to residential curtilage.  
 
EPF/0834/12 Erection of 50kW microgeneration wind turbine with a  New House Farm 
  tower height of 25m and blade diameter of 19m. Vicarage Lane  
   North Weald Bassett 
 
EPF/2137/12 Minor material amendment to EPF/1333/09  Threeways House 
  (Erection of 4 bedroom house) to include  Epping Road 
  alterations to fenestration and the addition of  Ongar 
  roof lights to form a second floor of accommodation. 
 
EPF/0856/12 Retrospective application for the change of use  Cold Hall Farm 
  from barn to Car Body Repairs shop. Kiln Road 
   Stanford Rivers 
 
7. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they are 
considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in cases where 
members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and where the committee officer 
can give a good indication of some success at defending the decision. As this is now highlighted 
as a separate performance target (KPI 55) it therefore potentially comes under more scrutiny.  
 
8.   Out of 2 enforcement notice appeals decided, 1 was allowed and 1 was dismissed. These 
are as follows:  
 
Allowed: 
  
ENF/0196/12 Without planning permission the change of  Cold Hall Farm 
 use from a barn to a car body repair shop Kiln Road 
   North Weald 

Page 42



 
 

 
Dismissed  
ENF/0272/12 Formation of a balcony  21 Newhall Court 
    Waltham Abbey 
 
Costs 
 
9.   During this period, there was one successful finalised award of costs made against the 
Council. Circular 03/2009 Costs Awarded in Appeals and Other Planning Proceedings (the 
“Costs Circular”) advises that, irrespective of the outcome of the appeal, costs may only be 
awarded against a party who has behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party applying 
for costs to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process. Costs therefore are 
rarely awarded against the appellant. The costs were as follows:- 
 
- London Lodge West, Copped Hall Estate, Epping: The appeal for cost was successful 

against the Council’s withdrawal of an enforcement notice and listed building enforcement 
notice after taking legal advice regarding the wording of the requirements for compliance 
with the notices, several months after the appeal was made. New differently worded notices 
were re-issued, but the Planning Inspector considered this was implicit in this that it was not 
expedient to serve the first notices in the form that they were and this amounted to 
unreasonable behaviour and caused the appellant to incur unnecessary expense in 
appealing. The cost amounted to £1,376.00  
 

10. Members attention is brought to the fact recent appeal changes allows Planning Inspectors 
to award costs against a party that has behaved unreasonably even if neither the Council or the 
appellant has applied for costs.   
 
Conclusions 
 
11. Whilst performance in defending appeals has improved during the last couple of years, 
Members are reminded that in refusing planning permission there needs to be justified reasons 
that in each case must be relevant, necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to avoid 
paying costs. This is more important now then ever given a Planning Inspector or the Secretary 
of State can  even if neither side has made an application for them. Whilst there is clearly 
pressure on Members to refuse in cases where there are objections from local residents, these 
views (and only when they are related to the planning issues of the case) are one of a number of 
the relevant issues to balance out in order to understand the merits of the particular 
development being applied for.   
 
12.  Finally, at a previous request from Planning Services Scrutiny Standing Panel, appended to 
this report are the 15 appeal decision letters, which are the result of Members reversing the 
planning officer’s recommendation (and therefore refusing planning permission) at planning 
committees, 10 of which were allowed and granted planning permission.    
 
13. A full list of appeal decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
 
Appeal Decisions April 2013 to September 2013 
 
Allowed With Conditions 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
1 EPF/1785/12 Demolition of existing nursing home and the  152 - 154 Daneley Court 
  erection of 14 apartments and associated car Nursing Home 
  parking spaces, amenity space, bin and cycle stores,  Queens Road 

Page 43



 
 

  foul and surface water drainage and landscaping.   
  
Chigwell 
2 EPF/0161/12 Removal of condition 8 of planning permission  6 Chigwell Rise 
  EPF/0594/10 to allow D1 use without employee  
  living on site. 
  
3 EPF/0071/12 Single storey rear extension with flat roof. 6 Chigwell Rise 
 
4 EPF/0160/12 Part change of use on the ground floor from  6 Chigwell Rise 
 C3 Residential to D1 in order to extend the current  
 dental surgery space.  
 
High Ongar 
5 EPF/1714/12 Single storey summer house and deck (revised  Orchard Villa 
 application to incorporate pitched roof and alterations  Norton Heath 
 to elevations).  
 
Loughton 
6 EPF/0931/12 Demolition of the existing house and garage.  182 Roding Road 
  Construction of a block of five one-bedroom flats;  
  new vehicle access cross-overs and external landscaping.   
 
7 EPF/0978/12 Erection of new two storey dwelling adjoining  2 Nevill Way 
  no.2 Nevill Way, including widening of existing   
 vehicular crossover at the front. 
 
North Weald Bassett 
8 EPF/2192/12 Erection of fencing (1.8m in height) and change  11A Lancaster Road 
  of use of land, currently in use for parking of  
  residents vehicles, to residential curtilage.  
 
9 EPF/0834/12 Erection of 50kW microgeneration wind turbine with a  New House Farm 
  tower height of 25m and blade diameter of 19m. Vicarage Lane  
 
Ongar 
10 EPF/2137/12 Minor material amendment to EPF/1333/09  Threeways House 
  (Erection of 4 bedroom house) to include  Epping Road 
  alterations to fenestration and the addition of   
  roof lights to form a second floor of accommodation. 
  
Roydon 
11 EPF/2057/12 Removal of condition 6 'Personal user' of  Field adjacent to 
  planning permission EPF/1458/07. (Erection of  Friars Lodge  
  4 x loose boxes with tack room and hay  Tylers Road  
  storage, wooden construction fixed to concrete  
  base inside (field adjacent to Friars Lodge) 
Stanford Rivers 
12 EPF/0856/12 Retrospective application for the change of use  Cold Hall Farm 
  from barn to Car Body Repairs shop. Kiln Road 
 
Allowed without conditions 
 
Loughton 
13 EPF/0003/13 Provision of a) one internally illuminated  Topps Tiles  
  individual letter sign at fascia level (Sign 1) and  (part of Browns of  
  one non-illuminated double sided pole or post   Loughton) 
  sign at front of forecourt (Sign 2) (Revised application)  Unit 2 & 3 Station Road  
 
Matching 

Page 44



 
 

14 EPF/2136/12 Change of use of paddock area to residential  Pond House 
  curtilage and erection of a two storey detached house  Matching Green 
  and detached garage. Formation of new road access  
  (Revised Application)   
 
Dismissed 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
15 EPF/0149/13 Proposed side/rear extension and loft  134 Forest Edge 
  conversion.  
 
16 EPF/2446/12 Two storey side and rear extension (alternative  82 Princes Road 
  scheme to EPF/2447/12).   
 
17 EPF/2447/12 Proposed two storey side and rear extension  82 Princes Road 
  (alternative scheme to EPF/2446/12)  
 
Chigwell 
18 EPF/0279/13 Retrospective planning application to retain loft  225 Lambourne Road 
  conversion involving an increase to the ridge of   
  the roof, three front dormers and rear dormer   
  including proposed reduction in size of rear dormer. 
 
19 EPF/0435/13 First floor side/part two storey rear extension  2 Chigwell Park  
  and part single storey rear extension. (Revised    
  application)   
 
20 EPF/2466/12 Livery facility comprising menage, loose boxes,  Land off Millers Lane 
  associated tack room, hay store, utility room  accessed between 
   and car parking spaces Billingsbourne Barn and 
   Billingsbourne Farm 
 
 
21 EPF/0516/12 Erection of replacement dwelling. 48 Stradbroke Drive  
 
Epping 
22 EPF/1125/12 Demolition of existing garage and store shed  Treetops Care Home 
  and construction of four storey side extension to  23-25 Station Road 
  provide additional bed space to existing care   
  home. 
 
23 EPF/0609/13 Loft conversion, double storey rear and ground  60 Bower Hill 
  floor side extensions.(Revised application)  
 
High Ongar 
24 EPF/1746/12 Change of use to residential, demolition of existing  L W & G L Pavitt 
  commercial buildings and erection of 2 new detached  164 Nine Ashes Road 
  dwellings, with greywater recycling pond and  Nine Ashes 
  associated paddock areas.   
 
25 EPF/2416/12 Two storey side extension. 74 Mill Lane 
 
Loughton 
26 EPF/1755/12 Proposed conversion of storage garages to new  Lioncare Ltd 
  Yoga and Pilates Studio including ground and first  186 Forest Road 
  floor extensions and demolition of outbuilding.  
 
27 EPF/1899/12 First floor extension above garage. 63 The Lindens 
 
Nazeing 

Page 45



 
 

28 EPF/0469/13 Extension to first floor on both sides and loft  Kifri 
  conversion. Middle Street  
 
Sheering 
29 EPF/0574/13 Replacement carport. Alice Springs  
   Sawbridgeworth Road  
 
30 EPF/2392/12 Partial demolition of existing bungalow and  3 Crown Close  
  erection of new detached dwelling.  
 
31 EPF/1834/12 Proposed new 3 bedroom detached, two storey house  The Orchard 
  with parking and proposed new garden area.  Queens Head Yard 
  (Resubmitted application) The Street 
 
Theydon Bois 
32 EPF/1245/12 Erection of sliding gates across vehicular access  1 Ivy Cottage Mews 
  at front of site, removal of section of infected hedge  Theydon Park Road 
  and planting of replacement hedge.  
 
Waltham Abbey 
33 EPF/0278/13 Two-storey front extension and rear balcony area 29 Woodgreen Road 
 
34 EPF/1240/12 Retention of metal railings on extension roof for  21 Newhall Court 
  balcony on rear of building.  
 
35 EPF/0789/13 Two storey side and part two storey/part single  75 Honey Lane  
  storey rear extension.  
 
Enforcement Appeal: Allowed with Conditions 
 
1 ENF/0196/12 Without planning permission the change of  Cold Hall Farm 
 use from a barn to a car body repair shop Kiln Road 
   North Weald 
 
Enforcement Appeal Dismissed 
 
2 ENF/0272/12 Formation of a balcony  21 Newhall Court 
    Waltham Abbey 

Page 46



 
 

 

Page 47



 
 

 

 

Page 48



 
 

 

 

Page 49



 
 

 

 

Page 50



 
 

 

 

Page 51



 
 

 

 

Page 52



 
 

 

 

Page 53



 
 

 

 

Page 54



 
 

 

 

Page 55



 
 

 

 

Page 56



 
 

 

 

Page 57



 
 

 

 

Page 58



 
 

 

 

Page 59



 
 

 

 

Page 60



 
 

 

 

Page 61



 
 

 

 

Page 62



 
 

 
 

 

Page 63



 
 

 

 

Page 64



 
 

 

 

Page 65



 
 

 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

 

Page 67



 
 

 

 

Page 68



 
 

 

 

Page 69



 
 

 

 

Page 70



 
 

 

 

Page 71



 
 

 

 

Page 72



 
 

 

 

Page 73



 
 

 

 

Page 74



 
 

 

 

Page 75



 
 

 

 

Page 76



 
 

 

 

Page 77



 
 

 

 

Page 78



 
 

 
 

 

Page 79



 
 

 

 

Page 80



 
 

 

 

Page 81



 
 

 

 

Page 82



 
 

 

Page 83



 
 

 

Page 84



 
 

 

Page 85



 
 

 

Page 86



 
 

 

Page 87



 
 

 

Page 88



 
 

 

Page 89



 
 

 

Page 90



 
 

 

Page 91



 
 

 

Page 92



 
 

 

Page 93



 
 

 

Page 94



 
 

 

Page 95



 
 

 

Page 96



 
 

 

Page 97



 
 

  
 

Page 98


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Area Planning Subcommittee West - members photo sheet 13-14

	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	42 Development Control
	Minutes West 23 Oct 2013


	7 CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/15/13 - Little Cutlands, Wilbea and Royd, St Leonards Road, Nazeing
	8 Threat of Special Measures and Refunding Of Planning Fees
	9 Development Control
	West 20 Nov 2013

	10 Probity in Planning

